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The Post and King Building was one of the first constructed after the Lakeview 
fire of 1900. The owners lost their earlier building in the fire, and the major concern 
for their new building was that it be fireproof. As a result this new building was quite 
simple in exterior ornamentation, most adequately described as late commercial Italianate 
architecture.

The exterior of the Post and King building is constructed of brick, fired in a 
local kiln. Surrounding the building above and below the second story windows are brick 
belt courses. The window openings on the second floor are segmental headed with one over 
one sash. In the center of the front facade the window opening on the second floor has 
been altered to accommodate a door opening (possibly used as a fire escape). The front 
first floor opening is symmetrically arcaded with the entrance in the center flanked by 
two windows. On the north side, the first floor has two doorway openings at the east and 
west sides, one semi-circular headed window next to the east door, and three segmental 
headed windows, similar to those on the second floor, asymmetrically placed. A brick 
entablature parapet caps the building on the north and front facades. An early picture 
shows the Post and King building as being unpainted. From the appearance of the present 
coats of paint, the building was later painted several times.

Originally, the Post and King building was used as a saloon. From the early 
descriptions, the interior was quite elaborate. There were several crystal chandeliers 
hanging from the ceiling of the large barroom. A large mirror adorned the back bar and 
three slot machines, several card and billiard tables made up the interior furnishings. 
The second floor was an elaborate dance hall, designed for the young people of the town. 
The Post and King building was open 24 hours a day, seven days a week, with two bartenders 
always on duty. A picture taken in 1911 shows all seventeen bartenders standing in front 
of the building.

During Prohibition the Post and King Saloon was closed down and the building 
was transformed into a boarding house. The first floor was divided into a dining room, 
large kitchen and storage area, and the second floor ballroom was divided into twelve 
separate bedrooms. Several stories and legends surviving from the prohibition period 
suggest that the transformed second story of the Post and King building was the head­ 
quarters in Lake County for "bootlegged" liquor. One reminiscence suggests that possibly 
as much if not more liquor was bootlegged from the Post and King "boarding house" than 
when it was a saloon.

At present, the building is unoccupied. The interior has basically the same 
configuration as when transformed in the 1920s. The present owner intends to restore 
the building as a tavern/restaurant, using the same building configuration as in the 
original saloon with a large bar and eating area on the first floor and a dance hall 
upstairs. The exterior will be left essentially as is, with necessary work done to 
replace and restore windows and doorway entrances.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

When constructed in 1900-1901, the Post and King building was one of the largest and 
most active saloons in Oregon. • It was a simple yet attractive example of late Victorian 
commercial architecture, and it-was the gathering place for local citizens, sheepherders 
and cattlemen who came to Lakeview.

Peter Post and Jonas King started their saloon business sometime during the 1890s. 
In May 1900, every business building in Lakeview except two was burned to the ground. 
After the fire, Post and King decided to reconstruct their saloon but they used brick in 
the reconstruction rather than lumber as in their first building. The exterior of the 
building was designed more for its utility than for its beauty, but the exterior detailing 
was attractive and interesting. The arcading on the front facade is similar to two other 
buildings across the street and quite interesting. There is an insurance building 
directly across the street and a hardware store next to the insurance building - both with 
similar arcading.

Just before the building-was completed, the local newspaper presented the following 
article: "the new bar of oak and mahogony wood that now graces Post and King's handsome 
saloon interior of the Post and King is completed - there will be nothing outside of 
San Fransciso, Portland or Seattle on the Pacific Coast that can touch it" (Lake County 
Examiner, June 13, 1901). Another,contemporary source said the owners invested $10,000 
in the building with most of the money used for the interior. Besides the oak and 
mahogony bar mentioned above,, there were three slot machines* several card and billiard 
tables, and a large mirror behind the;back bar. There was a small kitchen for short 
orders and a separate wooden building outside to house the woodshed and the toilets.

An important feature in the early history of the Post and King building was its 
popularity as a gathering place for local citizens and cattlemen and sheepmen from the 
surrounding area. Business was substantial enough that the saloon was open twenty-four 
hours a day, seven days a week. There were always two bartenders on duty and an early 
photograph shows all seventeen bartenders standing in front of the building. In reading 
the reminiscences of a Lakeview citizen growing up in the area when the Post and King 
saloon was operating at its peak, one is reminded of the saloons in old western movies, 
where the cattlemen and sheepmen were constantly involved in brawls, where from time to 
time a horse would break loose from its hitch in front of the building and run wildly 
through town, and a place where nearly everybody would gather socially.
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